

Version 9.2 SmartPTT PLUS

Capacity Max Configuration Guide

Januar 2018



Contents

1 Capacity Max	3
1.1 Configuring Capacity Max	5
1.2 Configuring Trunk Controller	9
1.3 Configuring MNIS Data Gateway	15
1.4 Configuring MNIS VRC Gateway	22
1.5 Configuring Talkgroups	26
1.6 Security Settings	27
1.7 Adding Console in Radio Management	37
1.8 Configuring Joint GPS and Indoor Data	38
1.8.1 Configuring Capacity Max in Radio Management	39
1.8.2 Configuring Repeater in Radio Management	39
1.8.3 Configuring Radio in Radio Management	40
1.8.4 Configuring Radio in SmartPTT Dispatcher	40

Capacity Max

Capacity Max is a trunking MOTOTRBO system that supports the European Telecommunications Standards Institute (ETSI) Digital Mobile Radio (DMR) Tier III operation.

Capacity Max system represents the enhancement of the Linked Capacity Plus functionality. It can include up to 15 sites and up to 15 trunked repeaters with up to 3,000 users per site. One slot on each site is allocated as a control channel. Capacity Max also supports data revert repeaters: up to 6 per site and 12 time channels per site.

Capacity Max system supports connection by using control stations. The parameters of the control station correspond to the parameters of an ordinary MOTOTRBO control station.

Capacity Max system offers the simple and efficient system architecture that utilizes standard Internet protocol (IP) network with a centralized Capacity Max System Server (CMSS).



CMSS represents the VMware Sphere version 5.5 ESX server and includes the following virtual resources:

- Trunking Controller based on the Red Hat Linux
- MNIS VRC gateway

Capacity Max

• Radio Management application that is used instead of *MOTOTRBO Customer Programming Software* (MOTOTRBO CPS) to configure the system

The system architecture also includes the MNIS Data Gateway, which is installed separately.

- High security. All voice, data and control traffic within the IP network is encrypted, and all radios are securely authenticated
- High level of reliability and resilience. The system can include an optional redundant server in addition to the main server and up to three alternate control channels per site

Capacity Max is compatible with all MOTOTRBO repeaters, except DR3000 series with the 8MB RAM, and all MOTOTRBO 4000 series portable and/or mobile radio stations.

To configure the Capacity Max system in *SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator*, you should have the following programs installed:

- *Radio Management* to get the settings of the preconfigured virtual resources
- MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility to set up the MNIS Data Gateway

Capacity Max configuration in *SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator* includes the following steps:

- Adding a new network and performing its basic configuration
- Configuring a Trunking Controller
- Configuring MNIS Data Gateway settings for data transfer
- Configuring MNIS VRC Gateway settings and talkgroups
- Configuring security settings

1.1 Configuring Capacity Max

To connect a new Capacity Max system to the SmartPTT Radioserver, follow these steps:

1. On the **Networks** tab, right-click **Capacity Max Networks** and then click **Add**.



2. Select the created Capacity Max system. The **Capacity Max System** pane appears:

SmartPTT Server Configuration - C:\Program File	es (x86)\SmartPTT\Server\RadioService.exe.config — 🛛	×
Settings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics	
Connect Plus NAI Systems Capacity Max Networks Capacity Max 1 Capacity Max 1 Capacity Max 1 MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways MNIS VRC Gateways Security Settings SIP/RTP Interfaces SmatPTT Radioservers	Capacity Max System Image: Capacity Max 1 Name: Capacity Max 1 Network ID: 1 Radio ID: 1 Interface: Any Interface: Any Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways Data Transmission Options GPS transmission mode: Data Voice Transmission Options Allow transmit interrupt Prioritize calls during emergency Encrypted connection Channel Grant Waiting timer (s): TX time-out timer (s):	

3. In the **Capacity Max System** pane, configure the available options:

Name: Name of the created system.

Network ID: Unique ID of the network. The network ID must not match any ID of other SmartPTT Radioserver networks

Radio ID: The identifier of the radioserver. This identifier is displayed on a radio when it receives private calls and text messages from the dispatcher. If there are several dispatchers, you can create a profile for each operator and define a unique identifier for each operator. **Radio ID** set in this window must correspond to the value set in the **Device ID** field for the preconfigured radioserver device in the *Radio Management* application (see the **Capacity Max Systems** settings, viewed by the **Subscriber Access Control** value).

To open the **Capacity Max System** settings in the *Radio Management* application, click **Action** \square \rightarrow **Manage** \rightarrow **Capacity Max System Server Data** or press Ctrl+Alt+S.

🚾 Radio Management		- 🗆 X
* ©		I I T
Capacity Max System Server Data 🔸 Subscribs C	ontrol	
Capacity Max Systems 4 System1	Q ~	
	Device Type 🖶 Radio Alias 🖶 Serial Number 🖶 Physical Ser	ial Number 🗧 Device ID 보 Enabled on System 보 🔷
	Console 0 0	4000009
	Console 0 0	4000004
	Console 0 0	4000010

Interface: The IP address of the computer where SmartPTT Radioserver is installed.

Trunking Controller: Select to allow the connection to <u>Trunking Controllers</u>.

MNIS Data Gateway: Select to allow a connection to a MNIS Data Gateway and its use.

MNIS VRC Gateways: Select to allow a connection to a <u>MNIS VRC Gateway</u> and its use.

Allow transmit interrupt: Select if you want to interrupt a radio.

Prioritize calls during emergency: Sets a priority of the dispatcher call during the Emergency Call. If the check box is selected, the dispatcher call has the highest priority during the Emergency Call in relation to other calls and interrupts them in case of lack of resources.

Encrypted connection: Select to activate encrypted TLS connection between radioserver and voice gateway.

Capacity Max

Channel Grant Waiting timer (s): Time period in seconds during which the caller expects a response from the called party (the FOACSU strategy). It is recommended to use the default value of 15 seconds that is set in *Radio Management* (see the **Capacity Max Systems:...** settings in the Capacity Max Features menu of the CMSS configuration, the **Channel Grant Waiting timer** field in the **Timers** tab).

NOTE

To open the **Capacity Max Features** of the of the CMSS configuration in the *Radio Management* application, click **Action** $\square \rightarrow$ **Manage** \rightarrow **Configurations** or press Alt+C. In the open table, select the CMSS configuration and click **Edit** \checkmark . In the open **Set Categories** pane, expand **Configuration:<CMSS configuration name>** and select **Capacity Max Features**.

痛 Radio Management							-		×
							E	T	1
Configuration View ► CMSS01 ► Capacity Max Systems ► Sys	tem1								
Set Categories #					Save	Save As	Discard	Close	
Device Information: USE519PLXA		General	Authentication	Timers	Capacity Max Sites	Adjacent Sites	Site Announcement		
Capacity Max Features		User Nam	e Verification Appl	cation					
Capacity Max Systems: CapacityMaxSystem Capacity Max Site Selection: VoiceMNISSite Capacity Network Network 101	 Timers 								•
			Channel Grant W	aiting Time	er (sec) 15		< >		
▶ □ Bridge			Response W	aiting Time	er (sec) 4.0				
			Group Ca	I Hang Tim	ne (sec) 3				
			Private Cal	l Hang Tim	e (sec) 4				

FOACSU (Full Off Air Call Set Up) stands for the strategy of assigning the traffic channel only when the called party user answered the call specifically. During the timeout the traffic channel is not allocated for the call. For the correct work of the FOACSU private calls, ensure it is configured in *Radio Management* (see the **Capacity Max Systems:...** settings in the <u>Capacity Max Features</u> menu of the CMSS configuration, the **Individual Voice Call Type** field in the **General** tab).

痛 Radio Management								- C	ı x
							I		1
Configuration View CMSS01 Capacity Max Systems Sy	/stem1								
Set Categories 무					Save	Save As	Discard	Close	
Device Information: USE519PLXA		General	Data Revert	Authentication	Timers	Channel Plan Lists	Capacity Max Sites		
 Capacity Max Features Capacity Max Systems: CapacityMaxSystem 	🔿 General								
Capacity Max Site Selection: VoiceMNISSite				System Name	System	1			
				System Type	Capacit	ty Max Advantage		•	- 11
Bridge				Network Model	Large			•	- 11
				Network ID	1				
			Individ	ual Voice Call Type	FOACS	U		•	

TX time-out timer (s): Time period during which the radio can transmit without interruptions. After this time is over, the transmission is interrupted. We recommend you to use the default value of *60* seconds, which is set in *Radio Management* (see the **MNIS System** settings in the **MNIS** menu of the CMSS configuration, the **Transmission TOT** field in the **General** tab).

NOTE

To open the **MNIS** menu of the **CMSS configuration** in the *Radio Management* application, click **Action** $\square \rightarrow$ **Manage** \rightarrow **Configurations** or press Alt+C. In the open table, select the CMSS configuration and click **Edit** \checkmark . In the open **Set Categories** pane, expand **Configuration**: **<CMSS configuration name>** and select **MNIS** \rightarrow **MNIS System**.

痛 Radio Management					- 0	×
Configuration View CMSS01 MNIS System MNISSystem	m-101					î
Set Categories 4 Configuration: CMSS01 Device Information: USE519PLXA		Save	Save As	Discard	Close	
	Set Name Last Modified Date Comments	• MN	ISSystem-101 D3/2016 13:35:06			
	VRC Gateway Enable MNIS Gateway UDP Port Transmission TOT (sec) Active Voice Talkpath Limit	e ✓ 5000 60 t 20	00			

GPS Transmission Mode: Select the suitable mode:

Data: GPS coordinates will be received in several packets. This mode is working only if
 Trunking channel is set in *Radio Management*. However, traffic is consumed in this mode.

痛 Radio Management								- 🗆	×				
‡ ()							I	1	1				
Configuration View + 478IRC0016 + Capacity Max Systems + TVZSystem1													
Set Categories ♀ ▼					Save	Save As	Discard	Close					
Device Information: 478IRC0016		General	Data Revert	Authentication	Timers	Channel Plan Lists	Capacity Max Sites						
General Capacity Max Features													
Capacity Max Systems: CapacityMaxSystem		1 items found (1	currently selecte	ed).									
Zone/Channel Assignment													
	🔿 Data	Revert											
			Enhanced	GNSS Window Size	10								

• **Enhanced CSBK:** GPS coordinates will be sent as a single Control Signaling Block. This is traffic-effective option and it allows to increase GPS request rate up to 7.5 s. However, you should make sure that radio units in your system support CSBK commands.

1.2 Configuring Trunk Controller

Trunking controller of the Capacity Max network provides actual information about the network status (registered radios).

NOTE

To configure trunk controller, install the corresponding license. For more information on how to install licenses, see Licenses.

To configure a primary trunking controller, follow these steps:

1. Ensure trunking controller is configured by using the *Radio Management* application, in particular, you can obtain IP address and port from the **Presence Server IP** field.

NOTE

For more information on how to configure Radio Management application, see *Motorola Radio Management User Guide*.

痛 Radio Management					- 0	×			
Configuration View CMSS01 CMSS Network Network	101			I	e 7	1			
Set Categories 4		Save	Save As	Discard	Close				
Device Information: USE519PLXA	General								
 Capacity Max Features Capacity Max Systems: CapacityMaxSystem 	General					•			
Capacity Max Site Selection: VoiceMNISSite	Trunking Controller Enable	Trunking Controller Enable 🛛 🖌							
	CMSS IP	192.0.2.0							
Bridge	CMSS UDP Port	50000							
	Trunking Controller IP	192.0.2.1:500	000						
	Presence Server IP	192.0.2.1:500	015						
	VRC Gateway IP	192.0.2.4							
	System Advisor IP	192.0.2.5							

- 2. Add a new Capacity Max network or select the existing one.
- 3. In the **Capacity Max System** pane, select the **Trunking Controller** check box to make trunking controller settings available.

🎯 Sma	rtPTT Serve	er Configur	ation - (C:\Progra	m Files	(x86)\SmartPTT\S	berver ^v	\RadioService	e.exe.conf	ig	_	×
Settings	Networks	Client List	Rules	Activity	Log	Export/Import Set	tings	Statistics				
	Control Stati Connect Plu NAI Systems Capacity Ma Capacity Ma Trur Capacity MNI Capacity Trur Trur Trur Trur Trur Trur Trur Tru	ons s x Networks (<u>Max 1</u>) king Contro S Data Gate S VRC Gate MNIS VRC (groups urity Settings enfaces adioservers	ller eway eways Gateway s	1		Capacity Max Active Name: Network ID: Radio ID: Interface: Trunking C MNIS Data MNIS VRC	Capac 1 Any ontrolle Gatev	tem city Max 1 ler way ways		~		

4. In the left pane, select **Trunking Controller** and in the **Trunking Controller** pane replace the default text "*remotehost:50015*" in the **Primary controller (IP address:Port)** field with IP address and port of the Presence Server from the *Radio Management* application.

ttings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics										
Control Stations	Trunking Controller										
	Primary controller (IP Address:Port)	remotehost:50015									
Capacity Max 1 Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways MNIS VRC Gateway 1	Add Remove P Down Name IP Address:Port										
- All Talkgroups											

Capacity Max supports up to 4 redundant trunking controllers to keep the radios online when the primary controller goes offline. The order of redundancy is defined by the settings in the *Radio Management* application.

To configure additional trunking controllers:

1. Make sure that redundant trunking controllers are configured in the *Radio Management* application.

📾 Radio Management				_		×
Configuration View CMSS01 Capacity Max Systems TVZSys	tem1			E	T	1
Set Categories 4		Save	Save As	Discard	Close	
Device Information: USE519PLXA	General Authentication Timers Capac	ity Max Sites	Adjacent Sites	Site Announcement		
Capacity Max Features	User Name Verification Application					
Capacity Max Systems: CapacityMaxSystem Capacity Max Site Selection: VoiceMNISSite CMSS Network: Network-101 MNIS MNIS Bridge	Primary Trunking Controller IP Primary Trunking Controller UDP Port Call Monitor Application 1 IP Call Monitor Application 1 UDP Port Call Monitor Application 2 IP Call Monitor Application 2 UDP Port Call Monitor Application 3 IDP Call Monitor Application 3 UDP Port Voice Interrupt Support	192.0.2.1 50000 192.0.2.5 51112 0.0.00 51112 0.0.00 51112 0.0.00 51112				
<	Telephone Support	\checkmark				-

- 2. In your Capacity Max network select **Trunking controller**.
- 3. In the **Redundant controllers** area, click **Add** to add a new controller to the table.

🎯 Sma	🧐 SmartPTT Server Configuration - C:\Program Files (x86)\SmartPTT\Server\RadioService.exe.config — □ ×															
Settings	Networks	Client List	Rules	Activity	Log	Export/Import Settings	Statistics									
	Control Stati Connect Plu	ons s				Trunking Controller										
	NAI Systems Capacity Ma	s x Networks				Primary controller (IP Address:Port) 192.0.2.1:50015										
	Capacity True MN	r Max 1 I <mark>king Contro</mark> S Data Gate	ller eway			Redundant control	Remove	💧 🏠 U	Jp 🐺	Down						
	Talk	S VRC Gate groups urity Setting: erfaces	eways s			Name		IP	Address:Port							

4. Change the redundant controller IP address and port according to the settings in the *Radio Management* application. Rename the controller if needed. You should name controllers differently.

Smart Settings	Networks	r Configur Client List	Rules	Activity	Log	(x86)\SmartPTT\Server	Statistics	e.config	_		~
	Control Stati Connect Plu	ons s				Trunking Controlle	er				
	IAI Systems Capacity Ma Capacity Trur Trur MNI	x Networks r Max 1 king Contro S Data Gate S VRC Gate groups urity Setting: erfaces	iler eway eways s			Primary controller (IP Redundant control Add Name Redundant contro	Address:Port) Ilers Remove Iler 1	192.0.2.1	:50015	VDown ort 0015	

5. Add more redundant controllers if needed. Change their IP addresses and ports according to the settings in the *Radio Management* application.

NOTE

If ports of some controllers are the same, the exclamation mark Θ appears near them. You cannot switch to another menu until you change the ports.

You can change the order of the redundant controllers in the table. This helps to assign a new active controller in case when others disconnect from each other.

To change the order of the controllers in the table, follow these steps:

1. Select the desired redundant controller.

2. Click **Up** or **Down** to move the redundant controller up and down.

<table-cell> Sma</table-cell>	rtPTT Serve	er Configur	ation - (C:\Progra	m Files	(x86)\SmartPTT\Server	\RadioService.exe.	.config	_		Х
Settings	Networks	Client List	Rules	Activity	Log	Export/Import Settings	Statistics				
	Control Stati Connect Plu	ons s				Trunking Controlle	۶r				
	NAI Systems Capacity Max Networks Capacity Max 1 Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways			Primary controller (IP Redundant control Add	Address:Port) ers Remove	192.0.2.1:	0.2.1:50015				
	Talk	groups urity Setting:	5			Redundant control	ler 1	19	92.0.2.1:50016		
	SIP/RTP In	terfaces				Redundant control	ler 2	19	92.0.2.1:50017		
						Redundant control	ler 3	19	92.0.2.1:50018		

To delete a redundant trunking controller from the table, follow these steps:

- 1. In your Capacity Max network select **Trunking Controller**.
- 2. In the **Redundant Controller** area, in the table select a redundant controller and click **Remove**.

SmartPTT Server Configuration - C:\Program Files	(x86)\SmartPTT\Server\RadioService.exe.config	– 🗆 X
Settings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics	
Control Stations	Trunking Controller	
Al Systems	Primary controller (IP Address:Port) 192	.0.2.1:50015
Capacity Max 1	Redundant controllers Add	👚 Up 🛛 🐺 Down
Talkgroups	Name	IP Address:Port
Security Settings	Redundant controller 1	192.0.2.1:50016
SIP/RTP Interfaces	Redundant controller 2	192.0.2.1:50017
	Redundant controller 3	192.0.2.1:50018

1.3 Configuring MNIS Data Gateway

To configure data transfer over Capacity Max network, configure MNIS Data Gateway settings in *SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator* and in *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility*.

NOTE

To configure data transfer, install the corresponding license. For more information on how to install licenses, see Licenses.

To configure MNIS Data Gateway settings in SmartPTT Radioserver, click **Capacity Max**

Networks \rightarrow Capacity Max \rightarrow MNIS Data Gateway.

SmartPTT Server Configuration - C:\Program Files	(x86)	\SmartPT	T\Serve	r\RadioService.ex	xe.con	fig —		×
Settings Networks Client List Network Configuration R	ules	Activity	Log	Export/Import Se	ettings	Statistics		
Control Stations	M	INIS Data	Gatew	ау				
AI Systems	Si	ocket Type iterface	•		1	Local Socket	~]
Capacity Max 1	M	INIS Contro	ol Interfa	се	k	oopback:55000]
MNIS VRC Gateways	M	INIS ID	+		1	001		
SIP/RTP Interfaces	Т	MS Port	it.		4	007		
	T	elemetry P	ort		4	008		
	Ιr	🗹 Redu	ndant Mi	NIS data gateway				
		Socket Ty	ре			Remote Socket	~	
		MNIS Con	trol Inter	face (IP Address:P	ort)	oopback:55001		
		MNIS Rela	ay Addre	ss (IP Address:Port	t) [r	remotehost:8890		
		Location F	ort		4	4011 😫		
		TMS Port			4	4017 🚖		
		Telemetry	Port		4	4018 🚖		

NOTE

The **Data transmission** check box in the **Capacity Max** window should be selected. Otherwise, the **MNIS Data Gateway** parameter will not be shown.

Socket Type: Defines the software interface type to enable communication between processes. Select the *Local Socket* value if the *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* is installed on the same computer as SmartPTT Radioserver. Select *Remote Socket* if the *MOTOTRBO* *Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* and SmartPTT Radioserver are installed on different computers. In this case, information exchange between the processes is supported by the MNIS Relay application.

Interface: MNIS interface. It must match the interface specified in the *Radio Management* application (see the **MNIS System** settings in the MNIS menu of the **DataMNIS_Config** configuration, the **Gateway Tunnel IP** field in the **Tunnel Network** tab).



MNIS Control Interface: Use *localhost*, if *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* is installed on the same computer as the radioserver. If *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* and the radioserver are installed on different computers, enter the IP address of the computer where *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* is installed. The port should match the port number specified in the *Radio Management* application (see the **MNIS Network** settings in the **MNIS** menu of the **DataMNIS_Config** configuration, the **Control Interface TCP Port** field in the **General** tab).

🚾 Radio Management					-		×
Configuration View DataMNIS01 MNIS Network MNISN	letwork-102				ਛ	1	1
Set Categories # Configuration: DataMNIS01 Device Information: DATAMNIS01		Save General	Save As	Discard		Close	
Capacity Max Features MNIS MNIS MNIS Security: MNISSecurity-101 MNIS System: MNISSystem-102	TMS UDP Port Telemetry UDP Port	4007					*
MNIS Advanced: MNISAdvanced-102	Location Server UDP Port User Defined UDP Port 1 User Defined UDP Port 2	4001 0 - Disable	d				
MNIS Application Override Rules MNIS Sites: MNISSitesList-101	User Defined UDP Port 3 XCMP High Efficiency Data Enable <i>XCMP Server UDP Port</i>	0 - Disable	d				U
	Battery Management UDP Port Control Interface TCP Port	4009 55000					L
<	Job Ticket UDP Port	4013					Ţ

NOTE

To open the **MNIS** menu of the DataMNIS configuration in the *Radio Management* application, click **Action** $\square \rightarrow$ **Manage** \rightarrow **Configurations** or press Alt+C. In the open table, select the DataMNIS and click Edit. In the **Set Categories** pane that opened, click **Configuration: <DataMNIS name>** \rightarrow **MNIS**.

MNIS ID: The Common Air Interface (CAI) ID of the MNIS in the radio network. The ID is used by other calling radios when addressing *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility*. Verify **MNIS ID** matches the corresponding field in the *Radio Management* application (see the **MNIS System** settings in the **MNIS** menu of the DataMNIS configuration, the **Data Gateway Radio ID** field in the **General** tab).

🚾 Radio Management		– 🗆 X
		E 🕈 1
Configuration View DataMNIS01 MNIS System MNISSy	stem-102	
Set Categories 4	Save Save As Discard	Close
Device Information: DATAMNIS01	General Tunnel Network Location Radio ID Range List	
Capacity Max Features		
 MNIS 	🔊 General	^
MNIS Security: MNISSecurity-101	Data Gateway Radio ID 300	
MNIS System: MNISSystem-102		
MNIS Advanced: MNISAdvanced-102	MNIS Gateway UDP Port 50000	🖸 🛛 📘
MNIS Network: MNISNetwork-102	Enhanced Data Enabled	
MNIS Forwarding Rules	Data Gateway Queue Size 25	
MNIS Application Override Rules	TX Privacy Type None	
MNIS Sites: MNISSitesList-101	TX Privacy Alias None	-

Location Port: The port where the radioserver will expect GPS data.

TMS Port: The port where the radioserver will expect text messages.

Telemetry Port: The port where the radioserver will expect telemetry data.

The ports should match the ports set in the corresponding fields in the *Radio Management* application (see the **MNIS Network** settings in the **MNIS** menu of the DataMNIS configuration, the **Location Server UDP Port** field, the **TMS UDP Port** field, the **Telemetry UDP Port** field in the **General** tab).



To set up MNIS Data Gateway settings in the *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility*, follow these steps:

Save MNIS Data Gateway settings from the *Radio Management* application as GWCFGX file. For that, click **Radios**, right click the **DATA MNIS...** item in the table that opened and click **Export** → **GWCFGX...** or press Ctrl+Shift+N. In the open **Export GWCFGX** window, select the file and click **OK**.

痛 Radio Management						— C	X I
						1	° 1
Radio View							
Groups 7			Show Details	Edit Configuration	Analyze	Schedule Jo	
Infrastructure		i 🗆	Cut	Ctrl+X			Q, ~
Radios	Serial Number Radio Alias	Configura	Сору	Ctrl+C	mware Version Codeplu	a Version Ja	b Statu
Repeaters	USE519PLXA Motorola	CMSS01	Paste	Ctrl+V	03.00.00	со Со	mpletec
	► DATAMNIS01 Motorola	DataMNISt			02.00.00		
	MXQ62407XL Motorola	CMSS02	Show Details	Ctrl+W	03.00.00	Co	mpletec
			Delete	Del			
			Select Group	Ctrl+Alt+G			
			Edit Configuration	Ctrl+F			
			Select Configuration	Alt+Shift+F			
			Compare	•			
			Select IP System Settings				
	•	-	Schedule Job	Ctrl+J) F
	3 items found (1 currently selected	d).	Cancel Job	Alt+Shift+J			
Analyze Results Compare Results Tasks(3	3*)		Salact MVO	Alt - Shift - V			
CONNECTED TO: LOCALHOST			Analyze	Alt+Shift+S			
			Reports				
			Upgrade Firmware				
			Package	Ctrl+Alt+P			
			Upgrade Language Pack	Ctrl+U			
			Evport		Radio Ch	d + Shift + P	
			Modify Radio Password	,	Grid to File Ctr	d+Shift+S	
					GWCFGX Ctr	rl+Shift+N	
			Copy Identity	L			
			Paste Identity				

- 2. Transfer the saved GWCFGX file to your computer where the *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* is installed, to the **Config** folder that is located on the local disk *C:/ProgramData/Motorola/Wireline Gateway*.
- Launch the MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility and click Configuration → Select Active Configuration. In the Select Configuration window that opened, select the GWCFGX file saved before and click OK.

MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility	_	\times
Configuration View Edit Service Help		
Gelect Configuration - X		
Select Configuration		
CapacityMax.gwcfgx OK Cancel		

If *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* and the SmartPTT Radioserver are running on different computers, or you configure several MNIS Data Gateways, follow these steps:

- 1. Install and run MNIS Data Gateway Relay on the computer where *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* is running.
- 2. Run the MNIS Data Gateway Relay Configurator.

🎯 MNIS Data G	iateway Relay		-	_	×
MNIS interface:	192.168.1.1	~			
Server interface:	192.168.1.1	~	Port	8890	 -

- In the MNIS interface field enter the same address as it is in the Tunnel IP Address of MNIS.
- 4. In the **Server interface** field enter the same address as you did in the previous step.
- 5. In the **Port** type the available port of the computer.
- 6. Save changes and restart MNIS Data Gateway Relay.
- In SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator double-click your network and click MNIS Data Gateway.

tings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics	
Control Stations	MNIS Data Gateway	
MAI Systems	Socket Type	Remote Socket \sim
Capacity Max Networks	MNIS Control Interface	192.168.2.2:55000
Trunking Controller	MNIS Relay Address	192.168.2.2:8890
	MNIS ID	1
SIP / RTP Interfaces	Location Port	4001
	TMS Port	4007
	Telemetry Port	4008
	Redundant MNIS data gateway	
	Socket Type	Remote Socket \lor
	MNIS Control Interface (IP Address:Port)	loopback:55000
	MNIS Relay Address (IP Address:Port)	remotehost:8890
	Location Port	4011 🚖
	TMS Port	4017
	Telemetry Port	4018 🜲

- 8. In the **Socket Type** field select *Remote Socket*.
- 9. In the **MNIS Control Interface** field, enter the IP address of the computer where MNIS service is running and the port from the **MNIS Control Interface TCP Port** field of the *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility*.

- 10. In the **MNIS Relay Address** field, enter the IP address of the computer where *MNIS Data Gateway Relay* service is running and the port from the **Port** field of *MNIS Data Gateway Relay*.
- 11. Configure other settings as describer previously.
- 12. Click **Save b** to save changes.
- 13. Click **Restart** lo restart *SmartPTT Radioserver* and apply changes.

1.4 Configuring MNIS VRC Gateway

Every Capacity Max network supports up to 15 MNIS VRC gateways. The first gateway is created always exists in the network, so you can add 14 gateways more.

NOTE

To configure MNIS VRC gateway, install the corresponding license. For more information on how to install licenses, see Licenses.

The order of the gateways matters a lot. All newly created profiles and talkgroups for your Capacity Max network will be assigned for the first MNIS VRC Gateway in the list. Therefore, you should be careful when configure several MNIS VRC Gateways.

To configure MNIS VRC gateway, follow these steps:

1. Make sure that VRC Gateway is configured in the *Radio Management*.

NOTE

For more information on how to configure Radio Management application, see *Motorola Radio Management User Guide*.

2. In your Capacity Max network select **MNIS VRC Gateways** to show and allow to configure MNIS VRC Gateways.

SmartPTT Server Configuration - C:\Program Files	(x86)\SmartPTT\Server\RadioService.exe.config — 🗆 🗙
tings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics
Image Networks Client List Rules Activity Log Control Stations Connect Plus NAI Systems NAI Systems Capacity Max Networks Capacity Max Networks Capacity Max 1 Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways MNIS VRC Gateways MNIS VRC Gateways SIP/RTP Interfaces SIP/RTP Interfaces SmattPTT Radioservers SmattPTT Radioservers	Export/Import Settings Statistics Capacity Max System Active Name: Capacity Max 1 Network ID: 1 Radio ID: 1 Interface: Any Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways Data Transmission Options GPS transmission mode: Data Voice Transmission Options Allow transmit interrupt Prioritize calls during emergency Encrypted connection Channel Grant Waiting timer (s): TX time-out timer (c):

3. To add a new MNIS VRC Gateway right-click **MNIS VRC Gateway** and click **Add**.



4. Select the newly created or existing gateway.

NOTE

By default, all new gateways obtain equal IP addresses and ports. When you select one of those, you will not be able to leave the menu until you make its IP address and port unique within the site.

5. Configure the gateway options.

sttings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics	
Control Stations	MNIS VRC Gateway	
NAI Systems Capacity Max Networks Capacity Max 1 Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways MNIS VRC Gateway 1 Talkgroups Security Settings SIP/RTP Interfaces SmartPTT Radioservers	Name Primary gateway address and port Redundant gateway address and port Voice port (local) Recording of voice calls between Radio IDs for voice calls recording	MNIS VRC Gateway 1 remotehost:56000 40000 m radios Example: 1-99, 150 1-16776415
alar	✓ Telephone calls	
	Radio IDs for phone calls	Example: 1-99, 150 1-16776415
	Talkpaths (1) Private (1) Group (0)	
	Active Name	ID
	Default radio ID	1

Name: The name of the gateway in SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator. Rename your gateway if needed.

Primary gateway address and port: IP address from **VRC Gateway IP** and port from **Server TCP port** which were configured in your CMSS Network in *Radio Management*.

Redundant gateway address and port: IP address of **VRC Gateway IP** and port from **Server TPC port** of the additional CMS server you assign to be redundant. You can leave this field empty if you do not have redundant VRC gateway.

Voice port (local): The port at which SmartPTT Radioserver will expect the voice data.

Recording of voice calls between radios: Select this to activate voice recording feature, that allows the dispatcher to hear private calls made from radios to other radios, dispatchers or telephone subscribers.

Radio IDs for voice call recording: Enter radio IDs for which the recording should be active. Follow the example, to specify the IDs.

Phone calls: Select this if you want to allow telephone calls for this gateway.

Radio IDs for phone calls: Enter radio IDs for which phone calls should be available. Follow the examples, to specify the IDs.

Talk paths: You can reorganize the default gateway for radios and profiles here.

Private: Click this to view the radio profiles which assigned to the current gateway. Profiles can be assigned to the gateway (**Active** is selected), not assigned (**Active** is clear) and unavailable on it (**Active** is clear, profile name is discolored). If the profile is unavailable, it means that it is selected on the other gateway. By default all new profiles will be selected on the first gateway in the list and their ID will be the same as that of the first gateway in the list.

Group: Select this to view talkgroups created for the current site. For more information see Capacity Max <u>Talkgroups</u>.

1.5 Configuring Talkgroups

To configure Capacity Max talkgroups, click **Talkgroups**. The **Control Station Talkgroups** window appears:



To add a talkgroup, click **Add**. To add an All Call, click **All Call**. The added talkgroups will also appear in the **Profiles** window. To change the order of groups in the list, use the **Up** and **Down** arrows. The order defined in the window will be used in *SmartPTT Dispatcher*. To copy added groups to the clipboard, click **Copy**. To paste copied groups from the clipboard, click **Paste**. To delete the selected talkgroup, click **Remove**.

Name: Talkgroup alias displayed by the control station.

ID: Talkgroup unique identifier used during communications. To be set in the range from 1 to 65535 for a talkgroup, and in the ranges from 1 to 16776415, from 16777056 to 16777183 or be equal to *16777214* for an All Call.

To edit the talkgroup name or ID, set the cursor on the corresponding field and make changes.

Site Number: Site number list allowed for transmitting. In the Capacity Max network the talkgroups can be only wide-area, while All Call can be wide-area or local.

NOTE

In the Capacity Max network you can add only wide-area talkgroups, so only the *Wide* value is available for groups in the **Site Number** field. In order to display wide area talkgroups in *SmartPTT Dispatcher*, add necessary talkgroups in *SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator*, define talkgroup identifiers that correspond to the identifiers of the wide-area talkgroups in the *Radio Management* settings. You can add a wide-area All Call and a local All Call, which is limited to one site. To add a wide-area All Call, which is available to all sites, click **All Call**. Verify that **Site Number** is set to *Wide*. To add an All Call limited to one site, click **All Call**, and in the **Site Number** field select the site number where the All Call will be heard. Please note, that you do not need any IDs for All Calls.

Voice gateway: List of available voice gateways. You can assign a certain voice gateway for each talkgroup.

NOTE

If there are some available voice gateways, all talkgroups use by default the first voice gateway in the list. If the talkgroup is not registered on any voice gateway, the **Voice gateway** field will be empty. If <u>Voice transmission</u> is not selected in the Capacity Max network settings, the **Voice gateway** column will be hidden.

You should create talkgroups in accordance with the settings in the Radio Management application (see the **Capacity Max Systems** settings, sorted by the **Talkgroup Site Association** value). For more information, see *Motorola Radio Management User Guide*.

1.6 Security Settings

Capacity Max network supports two types of privacy mechanisms – Enhanced and Advanced Encryption Standard (AES).

The Enhanced Privacy utilizes Motorola proprietary algorithms and therefore is not interoperable with other vendor's privacy offerings. The Enhanced Privacy provides high level of protection by means of 40-bit key length and supports multiple keys in a radio.

The Advanced Encryption Standard (AES) is a specification for the encryption of electronic data established by the U.S. National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST). The AES feature supports 256-bit key length, unlike Enhanced Privacy. Similar to Enhanced Privacy, the AES also supports multiple keys. For AES encryption a special license is required. You can specify the encryption keys for incoming and outgoing traffic on the digital channel in the **Security Settings** window.

Settings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log	Export/Import Settings Statistics
Control Stations Connect Plus NAI Systems Capacity Max Networks Capacity Max 1 Trunking Controller MNIS Data Gateway MNIS VRC Gateways MNIS VRC Gateways Talkgroups Security Settings SIP/RTP Interfaces	Security Settings Copy Paste Enhanced Privacy Add Remove Key ID Key Value TX Privacy Type No Key ID Key ID

Copy: Copy encryption settings of the channel to the clipboard.

Paste: Paste encryption settings of the channel from the clipboard.

Enhanced Privacy

To configure **Enhanced Privacy**, follow these steps:

- 1. Run the *Radio Management* application.
- 2. In the **Privacy Keys** tab of the Radio Management application add the enhanced privacy key. Enter its ID and value in the corresponding fields.

Radio Management							_	
								R
source View 🕨 Privacy Keys								
esources	4		0					_
Firmware	4	Ð	Θ					_
Language Packs		Key ID	Key Alias	Key Value	In-Use Templates and Sets	In-Use Templates(Template Mode)	In-Use Sets(Configuration Mode)	
Voice Announcements		4	Priv3	2	1	0	1	
Text To Speech Packs	-	3	Priv9	1	1	0	1	
Symmetric Keys		2	Priv8	1	1	0	1	
RAS Keys		1	Priv2	1	8	0	8	
Privacy Keys			F11V2	-	0	0	0	

Open the configuration of the required radio station and in the Set Categories menu click General → Security. To make the added enhanced privacy keys available for selection, add them in the selection set. To do that, in the Privacy tab click the Add.

1	🖬 Radio Management							-		×
	Configuration View • 871TRR8902 • Security • Security-104							⊌	T	1
	Set Categories © Configuration: 871TRR8902					Save	Save As Discard		Close	
	Device Information: 871TRR8902		General	Privacy AB	ES Restricted A	ccess to System	Over-the-Air Programmin	ıg		
	 Ceneral Welcome Bitmap: WelcomeBitmap-101 Language Packs: PCRLanguage-104 	Privacy			Brivacy Type	Enhanced				-
	 General Settings: GeneralSettings-104 Accessories: Accessories-104 			Ва	asic Privacy Key	1				Н
	Control Buttons: ControlButtons-104	Enhan	ced Privacy Keys							
	Text Messages: TextMessages-104 Telemetry: Telemetry-104		⊕ ⊝ ⊙							
	Menu: Menu-104		Key ID	Key Alias	Key Value					
	Security: Security-104	▶ .	1	Priv2	1]				
	Network: Network-104		2	Priv8	1					
	Voice Announcement: VoiceAnnouncer		3	Priv9	1					
	🗋 Indoor Location: IndoorLocations-104 🖉									

3. In the **Add Keys** window, select the required keys, which you want to be available for selection in the **Privacy Alias** field when specifying the enhanced key on the channel and click **OK**.

🧖 Add Privacy K	íey				×
					٩ ~
🚺 Ke	y ID Key Alias	Key Value	Comments		
▶ 🔽 4	Priv3	2]	
1 items fou	nd (1 currently sele	cted).			
				ОК	Cancel

4. In the **Security** window of the repeater settings in *MOTOTRBO CPS* in the **Privacy Type** field select **Enhanced**.



5. In the **Security** window of *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility* in the **Enhanced** field add the enhanced privacy key. Enter its ID and value in the corresponding fields.

MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility *					-	\times
<u>C</u> onfiguration <u>V</u> iew <u>E</u> dit <u>S</u> ervice <u>H</u> elp						
E: Untitled						^
··· BETR General						
Security Group List Group List Conventional		Add	Delete			
Capacity Hus Cipic Linked Capacity Plus		Alias	Key ID	Key Value		
🔃 💼 Advanced	1	Enhanced Key1	1	2612346782		

6. In the **Security Settings** window of SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator add an enhanced privacy key for incoming traffic. Enter its ID and value in the corresponding fields.

innanced r	Рпуасу	1
Add	Remove	
Key ID	Key Value	
1	0123456789	

NOTE

Key ID and Key Value must match the values set in the radio settings in the *Radio Management* program and *MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility*. If the values in the Key ID fields are the same, but the values in the Key Value fields do not match, the receiving side hears only a distorted voice. If the key identifier of the transmitting side does not coincide with one of the key identifiers in the list of the receiving side, then transfer to the receiving party will not be heard.

- 7. Click **Save b** to save changes.
- 8. Click **Restart** lo restart *SmartPTT Radioserver* and apply changes.

AES Privacy

To configure the **AES** privacy, follow these steps:

- 1. Run the *Radio Management* application.
- 2. In the **Symmetric Keys** tab of the *Radio Management* application add the AES privacy key. Enter its ID and value in the corresponding fields.



Open the configuration of the required radio station and in the Set Categories menu click General → Security. To make the added AES privacy keys available for selection, add them in the selection set. To do that, in the AES field, click Add.

📠 Radio Management					- C	ı x
Configuration View + 871TRR8902 + Security + Security-104						1
Set Categories			Save	Save As Discard	Close	
Valcome Ritman: WalcomeRitman-101	General	Privacy AES	Restricted Access to System	Over-the-Air Programming		
	aes ∕∕⊕⊖ ⊙					^
Text Messages: TextMessages-104	Key ID	Key Alias	Key Value			
Telemetry: Telemetry-104	1	Sym102	1			
Menu: Menu-104 Security: Security-104						

3. At that the **Add Keys** window appears: Select the required keys, which you want to be available for selection in the <u>AES Alias</u> field when specifying the AES privacy key on the channel and click **OK**.



4. In the **Security** window of the repeater settings in *MOTOTRBO CPS* in the **Privacy Type** field select **Enhanced**.



5. In the **Security** window of MNIS in the **Symmetric Keys** area, add the AES symmetric privacy key. Enter its ID and value in the corresponding fields.

NOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Conf	iguration Utility *			-	×
<u>C</u> onfiguration <u>V</u> iew <u>E</u> dit <u>S</u> ervice <u>H</u> e	elp				
1 🔁 📔 🖪 🖸	2				
🖃 🛑 Untitled			Symmetric Keys		^
- III General					
- Green Security					
🕀 💼 Group List			Add Delete		
🕀 🚞 Conventional					
😳 Capacity Plus					_
Einked Capacity Plus	Alias	Key ID	Key Value		 _
🗄 📹 Advanced	Symmetric Key1	1	54634562435		

6. In the radio settings in the *Radio Management* application to enable the AES encryption mode on the required channel, clear the **Privacy** check box and in the **AES Alias** field select the **AES privacy key**.

Radio Management									-	
Configuration View + 871TRR8902 + Zone + CapMaxZone									Ħ	•
Set Categories 0 ▼ □ Configuration: 871TRR8902 □ □ Device Information: 871TRR8902 □ □ □ General □ > □ □ Job Tickets > > □ Systems □	Zone Items						Save	Save As	Discard	CI
Encoder	Position	Set Name	Channel Type	Channel Name	Voice Announ	Phone System	Privacy	Privacy Alias	AES Alias	
Contacts	> 11	1 Personality-460	Capacity Max Personality	TG101Channel	None	Sys1		Priv2	Sym102	٦
►	> Nik	2 Personality-459	Capacity Max Personality	TG102Channel	None	Sys1		Priv2	None	1
Capacity Max Features	> N *	3 Personality-458	Capacity Max Personality	TG103Channel	None	Sys1		Priv2	None	
 Zone/Channel Assignment 	> 11*	4 Personality-457	Capacity Max Personality	TG104Channel	None	Sys1	~	Priv2	None	
V D Zone	> II *	5 Personality-456	Capacity Max Personality	Enhanced	None	Sys1	~	Priv2	None	
ConnectPlus	> 11+	6 Personality-455	Capacity Max Personality	SiteAllCall	None	Sys1		Priv2	None	
CapMaxZone 😳	> N #	7 Personality-454	Capacity Max Personality	MultiSiteAllCall	None	Sys1	v	Priv2	None	

7. In the **Security Settings** window of *SmartPTT Radioserver Configurator* add an AES privacy key for incoming traffic. Enter its ID and value in the corresponding fields.

AES Add	Remove]
Key ID	Key Value	
1	9876543210	

NOTE

Key ID and Key Value must match the values set in the radio settings in the Radio Management program and in MOTOTRBO Network Interface Service Configuration Utility. If the values in the Key ID fields are the same, but the values in the Key Value fields do not match, the receiving side hears only a distorted voice. If the key identifier of the transmitting side does not coincide with one of the key identifiers in the list of the receiving side, then transfer to the receiving party will not be heard.

- 8. Click **Save b** to save changes.
- 9. Click **Restart I** to restart *SmartPTT Radioserver* and apply changes.

TX Privacy

TX Privacy is used for selecting an encryption mode for outgoing traffic on the side of *SmartPTT Dispatcher*.

To configure the TX Privacy for a Capacity Max system, follow these steps:

1. In the **TX Privacy** area, from the **Type** list select the desired encryption type:

🥡 SmartPTT Server Configuration - C:\Program Files (x86)∖SmartPTT\Server\RadioService.exe.config —	
Settings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log Export/Import Settings Statistics	
Settings Networks Client List Rules Activity Log Export/Import Settings Statistics Control Stations Connect Plus NAI Systems Copy Paste Capacity Max Networks SIP/RTP Interfaces Basic Privacy Key 1 Enhanced Privacy Add Remove Key ID Key Value Tx Privacy Type No Key ID Key ID	

- Select *No* if encryption of outbound traffic from the radioserver is not required.
- Select *Enhanced* if you want to use enhanced encryption for outgoing traffic from the radioserver. Use the Key ID you specified in the **Enhanced Privacy** area.
- *AES license is required:* Select *AES (Symmetric Key)* if you want to use AES (*Symmetric Key)* encryption for outgoing traffic from the radioserver. Use the Key ID you specified in the **AES** area.

NOTE

If from the **Type** field *No* is selected and you have AES encryption for incoming traffic configured, AES (Symmetric Key) is used for incoming traffic by default.

- 2. Click **Save b** to save changes.
- 3. Click **Restart I** to restart *SmartPTT Radioserver* and apply changes.

1.7 Adding Console in Radio Management

Radio Management dispatch console is used for providing a dispatcher with an access to the Capacity Max network.

To add console in *Radio Management*, follow these steps:

- 1. Click Actions \square , and select Manage \rightarrow Capacity Max System Server Data.
- 2. Click **Add** ⊕.
- 3. In the open **Add Device** window, from the **Device Type** list, select *Console* and click **OK**.

G Add Device		×
Device Type	Console	•
	ОК	Cancel

- 4. In the table, in the added console row, perform the following actions:
 - a. In the **Device ID** column, enter radio ID for the console.
 - b. In the **Allowed Sites** column, from the list select **Edit**.
 - i. In the **Allowed Sites Lists** window, from the **Allowed Site List Name**, select the desired site for registering.

ii. Click Save.

Allowed Sites Lists		×
Allowed Site List Name	Available	Selected
<all sites=""></all>	Site Name	Site Name
DataMNISSite31	DataMNIS01	Add All
VoiceMNISSite36		
Allowed Site1		Add
Allowed Site2		
		Remove
		Remove All
	1 items found (1 currently selected).	1 items found (1 currently selected).
		Save Close

- c. In the **Telephone Gateway Site** column, from the list select the desired site for telephone recording.
- d. In the **Voice Recording Site** column, from the list select the desired site for voice recording.

届 Radio Management									- 🗆	×
‡ ©										1
Capacity Max System Server Data Subscrib.	.s Cont	rol								
Capacity Max Systems 🛛 📮	View by: Subscriber Access Control Talkgroup Site Association									
TVZSystem1	_									_
	4				Q, ~					
		Device Type 👎	Device ID 😕	Allowed Sites	Þ	Telephone Gateway Site 中	Voice Recording Site	-12	Serial Number	•
	\rightarrow	Console	4000019	VoiceMNISSite36	•	None 🔻	None	•	0	
	\rightarrow	Console	600	VoiceMNISSite36	•	VoiceMNIS01 -	VoiceMNIS01	•	0	
	\rightarrow	Console	4000018	VoiceMNISSite36	•	None 🗸	None	•	0	

1.8 Configuring Joint GPS and Indoor Data

If you want to receive joint location data (GPS and indoor) in Capacity Max, configure the following settings:

- Radio settings in Radio Management
- Radio settings in SmartPTT Dispatcher

- Repeater settings in *Radio Management*
- Capacity Max settings in Radio Management

1.8.1 Configuring Capacity Max in Radio Management

To configure Capacity Max in *Radio Management*, follow these steps:

- 1. Click **Actions** \square , and select **Manage** \rightarrow **Sets**, or press Alt+S.
- 2. In the Set Categories pane, select Capacity Max features \rightarrow Capacity Max Systems.
- 3. In the left column of the table, click > to select the desired **Capacity Max** system.
- 4. Click Edit 🖊.
- 5. In the **Data Revert** tab, from the **Enhanced GNSS Window Size** list, select the value *10*.
- 6. Save changes.

1.8.2 Configuring Repeater in Radio Management

To configure Capacity Max in *Radio Management*, follow these steps:

- 1. Click Actions \square , and select Manage \rightarrow Sets, or press Alt+S.
- 2. In the Set Categories pane, select Capacity Max features \rightarrow Capacity Max Systems.
- 3. In the left column of the table, click > to select the desired **Capacity Max** system.
- 4. Click **Edit** *✓*.
- 5. In the **Capacity Max Sites** tab, perform the following actions:
 - a. In the left column of the table, click > to select the desired **Capacity Max** system.
 - b. Click Edit 🖊.
- 6. In the **Capacity Max Channels** tab, perform the following actions:
 - a. In the left column of the table, click > to select the desired **Capacity Max** system.
 - b. Click Edit 🖊.
- 7. In the **General** tab, from the **Channel Type** list, select *Data Revert Channel*.
- 8. Save changes.

1.8.3 Configuring Radio in Radio Management

To configure radio in *Radio Management*, follow these steps:

- 1. Click **Radio View I**.
- 2. In the left column of the table, click **•** to select the desired radio.
- 3. Click Edit 🖍
- 4. In the **Set Categories** pane, perform the following actions:
 - a. Expand **Configuration** \rightarrow **Zone/Channel Assignment** \rightarrow **Zone**.
 - b. Select the desired Capacity Max zone.
- 5. In the left column of the table **Zone Items**, click ***** to select the desired channel.
- 6. Click Edit 🖊.
- 7. In the **General** tab, from the **Compressed UDP Data Header** list, select *DMR Standard*.
- 8. In the **RX/TX** tab, clear the **CSBK Data** check box.
- 9. Save changes.

1.8.4 Configuring Radio in SmartPTT Dispatcher

To configure radio in SmartPTT Dispatcher, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the radio properties window.
- 2. In the **Location** tab, perform the following actions:
 - a. Select the **Indoor Tracking** check box.
 - b. Select the **Update Interval** check box, and enter *30* in the field.